

Project reference: 2022-1-FR01-KA220-VET-000085281

Work package n°4 - Development of Digital DREAM Lab

Position Paper

Developed by Sud Concept

Table of contents

1.	Lessons Learned for Policymakers	. 1
	1.1 Build Digital Literacy as a Foundational Skill	. 1
	1.2 Support Flexible and Inclusive Training Formats	. 2
	1.3 Incentivize Digital Transformation for MSMEs	. 4
	1.4 Integrate Emerging Technologies in Training Programs	. 6
	1.5 Provide Ongoing Support and Follow-Up	. 7
2.	Guidelines for Future Training in VET	10
	2.1 Pre-Training Preparation and Orientation	10
	2.2 Blended Learning Models for Enhanced Accessibility	11
	2.3 Integrating Real-World Case Studies and Practical Applications	13
	2.4 Tailoring Content to Local Contexts	15
	2.5 Continuous Learning Pathways and Certification	16





Legal description - Creative Commons license : Documents published on the DREAM project website are considered "open educational resources" (OER) and may be freely (without permission from their creators): downloaded, used, reused, copied, adapted and shared by users, with information about their original source.

1. Lessons Learned for Policymakers

The piloting phase of the DREAM project provided valuable insights into the digital training needs of micro and small to medium-sized enterprises (MSMEs). These insights are critical for shaping effective policies that can foster digital resilience, support entrepreneurship, and ensure that MSMEs are well-equipped to thrive in a digital economy. This section presents the key lessons learned from the pilot and offers targeted recommendations for policymakers.

The main findings highlight the need to:

- **Build Digital Literacy as a Foundational Skill** to ensure all participants have the necessary competencies to engage with advanced digital tools.
- Support Flexible and Inclusive Training Formats to reach a broader audience, including those in remote areas or with different learning preferences.
- Incentivize Digital Transformation for MSMEs through financial and regulatory support that encourages businesses to adopt digital solutions.
- Integrate Emerging Technologies in Training Programs to prepare businesses for future challenges and opportunities in the digital landscape.
- **Provide Ongoing Support and Follow-Up** to ensure that the skills gained during training are effectively applied in real-world settings.

These recommendations aim to create a supportive ecosystem that allows MSMEs to leverage digital skills for growth and resilience, ultimately contributing to broader economic development goals.

1.1 Build Digital Literacy as a Foundational Skill

During the piloting phase, varying levels of digital literacy among participants were evident, with some participants needing significant support to engage with the training content effectively. Those with limited experience in using digital tools and platforms faced challenges in fully benefiting from the more advanced modules. For example, in several sessions, additional time was required to help participants navigate the Digital DREAM Lab platform and understand basic digital concepts

Policymakers should prioritize initiatives that focus on building digital literacy as a foundational skill, especially for those new to digital tools. By equipping individuals with essential digital competencies, they can better engage with more complex training modules on topics like digital marketing, cybersecurity, and entrepreneurship. This foundational digital literacy is critical for ensuring that MSMEs can participate in the digital economy and adopt new technologies effectively.

Action Steps:

1. **Support Foundational Digital Literacy Programs**: Develop and fund programs that provide basic digital skills training, such as using digital devices, navigating online platforms, and understanding online safety. These programs should be targeted at both young people entering the workforce and adults looking to upskill or reskill.





- Example: Establish local digital literacy workshops in collaboration with educational institutions and community centers, providing accessible training on using essential software, navigating e-commerce platforms, and basic troubleshooting.
- 2. **Incorporate Digital Literacy into VET Curricula**: Integrate digital literacy as a mandatory component of vocational education and training programs. This ensures that all learners, regardless of their field of study, acquire the skills necessary to use digital tools effectively.
 - Example: VET institutions could include a core module on digital literacy, covering topics like online collaboration tools, email communication, and digital safety practices. This module would serve as a prerequisite for more advanced training on digital entrepreneurship.
- 3. **Promote Awareness of Digital Literacy's Importance**: Create public awareness campaigns that emphasize the importance of digital skills for both personal and professional development. Highlight the role of digital literacy in improving employability, business productivity, and access to new market opportunities.
 - **Example**: Use social media, local radio, and partnerships with business associations to reach micro-entrepreneurs and small business owners who may not be aware of the benefits of digital training.

- Increased Engagement in Advanced Training: By ensuring that participants have a strong foundation in digital literacy, they are more likely to engage fully with advanced training modules, such as those on digital marketing, cybersecurity, and business planning.
- Improved Adoption of Digital Tools: A solid understanding of basic digital tools helps MSMEs to integrate more complex digital solutions into their operations, such as e-commerce platforms, online payment systems, and customer management tools.
- **Enhanced Inclusivity**: Prioritizing digital literacy helps bridge the digital divide, making training programs more accessible to participants from underserved communities or those who have limited prior exposure to digital tools.

Building digital literacy as a foundational skill is a critical step in ensuring the success of broader digital training initiatives. By focusing on this area, policymakers can create a more inclusive and resilient digital economy, where MSMEs are well-prepared to leverage digital tools and platforms for their growth. This foundational approach will enable subsequent training efforts to be more effective and impactful, ultimately driving sustainable economic development in the digital age.

1.2 Support Flexible and Inclusive Training Formats

The piloting phase demonstrated that flexible training formats, such as blended learning (combining online and in-person sessions), significantly improved accessibility and engagement among diverse participant groups. The flexibility allowed participants from different geographic locations, including rural and underserved areas, to take part in the training. Additionally, varying levels of digital proficiency meant that participants benefited from multiple modes of content delivery. For example, combining face-to-face interaction with online resources provided participants the opportunity to learn at their own pace and revisit materials as needed





2

Policymakers should encourage the adoption of flexible and inclusive training formats to accommodate a wider range of learning needs and preferences. Training programs should be designed to offer different modes of delivery—such as in-person, online, and hybrid formats—to ensure that digital skills development is accessible to all, regardless of location, prior experience, or time constraints. By supporting diverse learning approaches, digital training initiatives can reach a broader audience and be more effective in promoting digital resilience.

Action Steps:

- 1. Encourage Blended Learning Approaches: Promote the use of blended learning models that combine the benefits of in-person training (e.g., hands-on exercises and real-time feedback) with the flexibility of online learning (e.g., recorded lectures, digital assignments, and self-paced modules).
 - Example: Support training programs that offer initial in-person workshops to introduce new concepts, followed by online modules that participants can complete independently. This approach accommodates those who may not be able to attend all sessions in person due to geographic or time limitations.
- 2. **Provide Options for Self-Paced Learning**: Incorporate self-paced learning opportunities into digital training programs, allowing participants to access materials on their own schedule. This is particularly important for MSMEs, whose employees may need to balance training with day-to-day business operations.
 - **Example**: Develop digital resources such as recorded webinars, online tutorials, and downloadable guides that participants can access anytime. This helps individuals who face scheduling conflicts or time zone differences.
- 3. Offer Adaptive Learning Paths Based on Skill Level: Design training programs that include multiple entry points, accommodating participants with different levels of prior digital knowledge. Beginners can start with foundational courses, while more experienced learners can skip ahead to advanced modules.
 - **Example**: Implement an initial skills assessment to determine each participant's digital proficiency, then guide them to appropriate training levels. This could include tailored learning pathways that focus on foundational skills, intermediate topics, or specialized areas like digital marketing or cybersecurity.
- 4. **Support Hybrid Learning Models to Broaden Access**: Utilize hybrid learning models that combine in-person sessions with live-streamed or recorded online content. This approach ensures broader participation, including those who face barriers to attending physical training locations.
 - **Example**: Partner with local VET centers and community organizations to host hybrid training events, where some participants attend in person while others join virtually. This format can include live Q&A sessions that engage both on-site and remote learners.
- 5. **Ensure Accessibility for Diverse Learner Needs**: Make sure training content is accessible to individuals with disabilities and meets diverse learning needs. This includes providing materials in different formats (e.g., audio, video, text) and ensuring compatibility with assistive technologies.
 - **Example**: Include captions for video content, provide transcripts for audio materials, and ensure the platform is compatible with screen readers and other accessibility tools.

Benefits:





- Increased Participation and Reach: Flexible formats allow for a broader range of participants, including those from remote areas, those with mobility issues, or those who have time constraints due to work or family commitments.
- **Higher Engagement and Retention**: Multiple modes of learning, such as videos, hands-on activities, and interactive discussions, help maintain participants' interest and cater to different learning styles.
- Enhanced Learning Outcomes: Participants who can learn at their own pace and revisit materials are more likely to retain information and apply new skills effectively. Hybrid models also facilitate deeper learning through a mix of interactive and independent study.

Supporting flexible and inclusive training formats is essential for ensuring that digital skills development reaches a diverse audience, including those who may face barriers to traditional training approaches. By promoting blended, self-paced, and hybrid learning models, policymakers can help create a more inclusive digital training ecosystem. This approach not only expands access to learning opportunities but also improves the overall effectiveness of digital resilience programs for MSMEs.

1.3 Incentivize Digital Transformation for MSMEs

The piloting phase revealed that many MSMEs face challenges in adopting digital tools and solutions due to limited resources, lack of digital skills, and concerns about the costs associated with digital transformation. While participants expressed interest in topics like digital marketing, cybersecurity, and e-commerce, some struggled with implementing these tools due to financial constraints and a lack of support for digital integration. The feedback indicated a need for stronger incentives and support mechanisms to help MSMEs transition to digital practices

Policymakers should implement financial and regulatory incentives to encourage MSMEs to invest in digital transformation. This includes providing grants, subsidies, tax incentives, and access to low-interest loans for businesses that adopt digital tools and training programs. Additionally, policies should support training initiatives that are directly linked to digital adoption in business operations, helping MSMEs implement digital strategies more effectively.

- 1. **Offer Financial Incentives for Digital Investments**: Provide grants, subsidies, or tax breaks to MSMEs that invest in digital tools, software, or training programs. This financial support can offset the initial costs of adopting new technologies, making it more feasible for small businesses to undertake digital transformation.
 - Example: Create a government-backed subsidy program that covers a percentage of costs for MSMEs purchasing digital tools, such as e-commerce platforms, customer relationship management (CRM) systems, or cybersecurity solutions. Provide additional financial support for businesses that integrate digital skills training for their employees.
- 2. **Implement Digital Training Grants and Vouchers**: Develop programs that offer training vouchers or grants for MSMEs to access digital skills training. These programs can be structured to provide businesses with financial assistance for enrolling in accredited digital training courses.
 - **Example**: Introduce a digital training grant that covers the cost of approved courses for MSME employees, allowing them to upskill in areas such as digital marketing, data





analytics, or cybersecurity. The grant could be linked to the completion of training and implementation of digital projects in the business.

- 3. **Provide Access to Low-Interest Loans for Digital Transformation Projects**: Partner with financial institutions to offer low-interest loans specifically for MSMEs seeking to implement digital tools or upgrade their digital infrastructure. These loans could be used for purchasing software, hardware, or consulting services related to digital transformation.
 - **Example**: Launch a loan program that provides funding for projects such as website development, automation of business processes, or the integration of digital payment systems, with favorable terms for MSMEs that demonstrate a commitment to digital adoption.
- 4. Link Digital Training Programs to Business Incentives: Create a policy framework where businesses that participate in digital skills training can access additional incentives, such as grants for digital tools or reduced regulatory requirements. This approach ensures that training is closely tied to the practical application of digital skills in business operations.
 - **Example**: Offer a "digital transformation bonus" for MSMEs that complete a recognized digital training program and implement a digital strategy within a set period. The bonus could include financial rewards or additional funding to support ongoing digital projects.
- 5. Facilitate Partnerships Between Tech Companies and MSMEs: Encourage collaborations between technology providers and MSMEs to offer discounted or subsidized access to digital tools. Tech companies can play a role in supporting digital skills training and providing affordable software solutions.
 - **Example**: Develop public-private partnerships where tech companies offer free or low-cost software licenses for a limited time, coupled with training programs that help MSMEs learn to use the tools effectively. This can include mentorship programs where tech experts provide hands-on guidance.

Benefits:

- Accelerated Digital Adoption: Financial incentives lower the barriers to adopting new technologies, encouraging MSMEs to integrate digital tools into their operations sooner rather than later.
- Increased Competitiveness: Access to digital tools and training helps MSMEs compete with larger businesses, enabling them to reach new markets, improve productivity, and optimize business processes.
- Enhanced Workforce Skills: By linking digital training programs to business incentives, employees gain valuable skills that improve their job performance and contribute to the overall growth of the business.

Incentivizing digital transformation is a crucial step in supporting the growth and resilience of MSMEs. Financial support, regulatory incentives, and partnerships with technology providers can make digital tools more accessible and affordable for small businesses. By implementing these strategies, policymakers can help MSMEs overcome the financial and skills-related barriers to digital adoption, fostering a more inclusive and competitive digital economy.





1.4 Integrate Emerging Technologies in Training Programs

During the piloting phase, participants showed strong interest in learning about emerging technologies such as artificial intelligence (AI), data analysis, automation, and the Internet of Things (IoT). These technologies are increasingly relevant for the future of business, as they drive efficiency, innovation, and competitiveness. However, some participants noted that the existing training modules did not delve deeply into these advanced topics, suggesting a need to expand the curriculum to include training on emerging technologies that are crucial for digital transformation

Policymakers should support the integration of emerging technologies into digital skills training programs for MSMEs, making them a core part of vocational education and continuous learning. This can be achieved by updating training curricula to include hands-on experience with advanced technologies and by providing opportunities for MSMEs to apply these skills in practical business scenarios. Emphasizing emerging technologies in training will help prepare businesses for future challenges and ensure that they stay competitive in a rapidly evolving digital landscape.

- 1. **Update Training Curricula to Include Emerging Technologies**: Expand the content of digital skills training programs to cover topics such as AI, data analytics, IoT, and automation. This should include an introduction to these technologies and their potential applications in business operations, as well as practical exercises and case studies.
 - Example: Integrate modules on AI and machine learning into existing digital skills courses, with a focus on how small businesses can use these technologies for tasks like customer segmentation, predictive analytics, and process automation.
- 2. Partner with Technology Providers to Offer Hands-On Learning Opportunities: Collaborate with tech companies to provide access to tools, platforms, and resources that enable practical, hands-on learning with emerging technologies. These partnerships can also facilitate the development of specialized training programs tailored to the needs of MSMEs.
 - **Example**: Establish partnerships with software companies to provide free or discounted access to AI tools, data analytics platforms, and IoT devices for training purposes. This can be coupled with mentorship programs where tech experts guide participants through the process of implementing these technologies in real-world scenarios.
- 3. Introduce Certification Programs for Advanced Digital Skills: Develop certification programs focused on emerging technologies, allowing participants to gain formal recognition for their skills in areas like data science, automation, and AI. Certifications can enhance the credibility of training programs and improve participants' employability.
 - **Example**: Launch a certification program for AI and data analytics in collaboration with industry leaders, where participants complete a series of training modules and practical projects to earn a credential recognized by employers.
- 4. **Incorporate Real-World Projects and Use Cases in Training**: Design training programs that include projects based on real-world business problems, requiring participants to apply emerging technologies to develop solutions. This approach provides valuable experience and demonstrates the practical utility of the skills learned.





- Example: Include a capstone project in digital skills courses where participants use AI to analyze business data, create automation scripts for process optimization, or design IoTbased solutions for monitoring inventory.
- 5. Offer Continuous Learning Opportunities to Keep Up with Technological Advancements: As technology evolves, it is essential to provide ongoing training opportunities that help businesses stay up-to-date with the latest advancements. This can be achieved through regular workshops, webinars, and updated online courses focusing on new developments in emerging technologies.
 - **Example**: Organize quarterly webinars on the latest trends in AI and IoT, featuring guest speakers from the tech industry who share insights on how these technologies are reshaping business practices.

- **Future-Proofs MSMEs**: By equipping businesses with skills in emerging technologies, MSMEs can better adapt to technological changes and seize new market opportunities, ensuring long-term competitiveness.
- **Promotes Innovation**: Training in advanced technologies encourages a culture of innovation, allowing MSMEs to develop new products, optimize operations, and deliver more value to customers.
- **Expands Career Opportunities for Workers**: Employees who gain expertise in emerging technologies are better positioned to take on high-value roles, making them more attractive to employers and enhancing their career prospects.

Integrating emerging technologies into training programs is essential for preparing MSMEs to navigate the complexities of a rapidly changing digital economy. By updating curricula, partnering with technology providers, offering certification programs, and emphasizing practical applications, policymakers can ensure that digital skills training remains relevant and forward-looking. This approach will not only boost the digital capabilities of MSMEs but also drive innovation and economic growth.

1.5 Provide Ongoing Support and Follow-Up

Feedback from the piloting phase indicated that while participants benefited from the training sessions, they faced challenges in applying the newly acquired digital skills to real-world scenarios. Many participants expressed a need for ongoing support and follow-up after the training to reinforce learning, address emerging challenges, and stay updated on new developments. Continuous support was particularly important for MSMEs, which may lack internal resources or expertise to fully implement digital tools on their own

Policymakers should develop strategies to provide ongoing support and follow-up to participants after completing digital training programs. This can include mentorship, access to learning communities, refresher courses, and continuous updates on digital skills and tools. Establishing a long-term support system will help ensure that training programs lead to practical outcomes, with participants able to implement and maintain digital solutions effectively in their businesses.

Action Steps:

1. **Create Digital Skills Mentorship Programs**: Establish mentorship programs where experienced digital professionals provide guidance to MSMEs and individuals after the completion of training.





Mentors can offer advice on practical implementation, troubleshooting, and strategic digital planning.

- **Example**: Pair participants with mentors from technology companies, business associations, or educational institutions who can offer ongoing support, including one-on-one consultations or group mentorship sessions.
- 2. **Develop Online Learning Communities and Peer Networks**: Facilitate the formation of online learning communities where participants can share experiences, ask questions, and access resources. These networks can include alumni from the training programs, industry experts, and trainers who contribute to ongoing discussions.
 - **Example**: Create a dedicated online forum or social media group for training participants, where they can continue to engage with trainers, peers, and experts. Regularly host discussion sessions or Q&A webinars to keep the community active.
- 3. Offer Refresher Courses and Advanced Workshops: Provide refresher courses or advanced workshops periodically to help participants reinforce their skills and learn about new trends or tools. This can help businesses stay up to date with digital advancements and adapt to evolving market conditions.
 - **Example**: Organize annual refresher courses focusing on updates in digital marketing, cybersecurity best practices, or new software tools. Offer these courses at a reduced cost for alumni of the initial training program.
- 4. Implement Continuous Monitoring and Follow-Up Assessments: Conduct follow-up assessments with participants to measure the impact of training on their business practices and digital maturity. Use these assessments to provide personalized recommendations for further learning and to track long-term progress.
 - **Example**: Send out follow-up surveys or conduct brief online assessments every 6-12 months to evaluate how participants are using the skills they learned. Based on the results, recommend specific follow-up courses or mentoring opportunities.
- 5. **Provide Access to Updated Learning Resources**: Ensure that training materials, resources, and content remain current by periodically updating them to reflect new digital tools, techniques, and market developments. Make these updates accessible to past participants so they can continue to learn and adapt.
 - **Example**: Maintain an online resource library with the latest guides, case studies, and tutorials on digital skills. Regularly update the content and notify alumni of new resources that may benefit their ongoing learning.

Benefits:

- Improved Skill Retention and Application: Ongoing support helps participants retain the skills they learned and apply them effectively in their businesses, increasing the likelihood of successful digital transformation.
- Strengthened Community of Practice: By fostering networks of learners, mentors, and experts, ongoing support initiatives create a community that continuously shares knowledge, best practices, and solutions to common challenges.





• Enhanced Long-Term Impact of Training Programs: Continuous follow-up and updated resources ensure that the benefits of training extend well beyond the initial sessions, contributing to sustained digital growth and competitiveness for MSMEs.

Providing ongoing support and follow-up is crucial for ensuring that digital skills training leads to meaningful and sustainable outcomes. By establishing mentorship programs, creating learning communities, offering refresher courses, and maintaining updated resources, policymakers can support MSMEs in effectively implementing and evolving their digital strategies. This approach not only helps participants apply their skills in real-world scenarios but also contributes to a culture of lifelong learning and continuous improvement.





2. Guidelines for Future Training in VET

The piloting phase of the DREAM project revealed several best practices and areas for improvement in delivering digital skills training through VET (Vocational Education and Training) programs. To enhance the integration of digital resilience training into VET, these guidelines aim to address participants' diverse needs while ensuring that training is practical, relevant, and applicable to real-world business scenarios.

The guidelines cover essential aspects of VET training design and delivery, including:

- Pre-Training Preparation and Orientation to ensure participants are ready for digital learning.
- **Blended Learning Models for Enhanced Accessibility** to accommodate different learning preferences and logistical constraints.
- Integrating Real-World Case Studies and Practical Applications to provide hands-on experience.
- Tailoring Content to Local Contexts to ensure training is relevant to regional market conditions.
- Continuous Learning Pathways and Certification to encourage ongoing development.

2.1 Pre-Training Preparation and Orientation

Provide introductory modules or preparatory resources to ensure participants are ready for digital learning before starting the main training sessions. Pre-training preparation helps to bridge any gaps in digital literacy, familiarizes participants with the training platform, and sets the stage for a successful learning experience.

The piloting phase indicated that participants had varying levels of digital literacy, with some requiring more time to adjust to the learning platform and content than others. Those who were less familiar with digital tools faced challenges in navigating the platform and keeping up with the training pace. Providing a pre-training orientation helps to create a more level playing field, allowing all participants to start the main training with a similar baseline of digital skills

- 1. **Conduct an Initial Digital Skills Assessment**: Before the main training begins, assess participants' digital skills to identify any gaps in basic competencies, such as using online platforms, understanding digital safety, or navigating software.
 - Example: Administer a brief online survey or quiz that covers basic digital tasks, such as using email, conducting online searches, and understanding basic cybersecurity concepts. This assessment can guide the development of targeted pre-training resources.
- Provide Introductory Modules on Essential Digital Skills: Offer short, self-paced courses on basic digital skills to help participants become familiar with the tools they will use during the training. This should include tutorials on how to use the training platform, access resources, and engage with digital content.





- **Example**: Develop an introductory course that includes topics such as logging into the learning platform, participating in online discussions, accessing digital learning materials, and using basic productivity tools (e.g., word processing software, email, cloud storage).
- 3. Organize Pre-Training Orientation Sessions: Host live or recorded orientation sessions that introduce participants to the course structure, learning objectives, and expectations. These sessions should include a walk-through of the training platform, a demonstration of key features, and tips for successful online learning.
 - **Example**: Hold a live webinar or in-person workshop before the start of the main training to explain how the Digital DREAM Lab platform works, show participants how to navigate modules, and answer any questions they may have.
- 4. **Develop a Digital Readiness Toolkit**: Create a toolkit with resources to help participants prepare for digital learning. This could include checklists, video tutorials, and guides on troubleshooting common technical issues, such as connectivity problems or software compatibility.
 - Example: Include resources on internet safety, password management, and basic troubleshooting for common issues like slow loading times or difficulties accessing certain files. The toolkit can also provide a list of recommended software and hardware for an optimal learning experience.
- 5. **Offer Optional Warm-Up Activities**: Provide optional pre-training activities, such as discussion forums, practice quizzes, or introductory assignments, to help participants become familiar with the learning environment and get to know other learners.
 - **Example**: Set up an online discussion board where participants can introduce themselves, share their expectations for the training, and practice using the platform's features before the official start of the course.

- Increased Confidence and Readiness: Participants who receive pre-training preparation are more likely to feel comfortable with the learning platform and digital tools, leading to higher engagement during the main training.
- Improved Accessibility and Inclusivity: Ensuring that all participants have a baseline level of digital literacy helps make the training more inclusive, particularly for those with less prior experience using digital technologies.
- **Higher Engagement and Reduced Dropout Rates**: When participants are well-prepared, they are more likely to stay engaged throughout the training and complete the program successfully.

Pre-training preparation and orientation are critical components for setting participants up for success in digital skills training programs. By assessing digital readiness, providing introductory resources, and organizing orientation sessions, VET providers can ensure that participants begin the main training with the skills and confidence needed to make the most of their learning experience.

2.2 Blended Learning Models for Enhanced Accessibility

Adopt blended learning models that combine online and in-person training to accommodate different learning preferences, logistical constraints, and access needs. Blended learning allows for flexibility in how





participants engage with the content, increasing accessibility for diverse groups, including those in remote areas or with busy schedules.

The piloting phase of the DREAM project demonstrated that blended learning formats—incorporating a mix of face-to-face interaction and digital content delivery—helped accommodate participants from various backgrounds and with different levels of digital proficiency. Blended learning also provided flexibility, allowing participants to learn at their own pace while still benefiting from the structure and engagement of in-person sessions

- 1. **Design Training Programs with Core Content Available Online**: Create a flexible program structure where key training modules are accessible online, supplemented by optional in-person sessions for practical applications or complex topics. Online materials should include video lectures, digital resources, quizzes, and interactive exercises.
 - **Example**: Provide digital learning modules on topics like digital marketing, cybersecurity basics, or financial management that participants can complete at their own pace. Follow up with in-person workshops focused on applying these skills through real-world projects or group activities.
- 2. Schedule Regular In-Person Sessions for Hands-On Activities: Plan in-person sessions at regular intervals during the course to engage participants in hands-on learning activities, such as practical exercises, case studies, group discussions, or simulations. These sessions should focus on skills that are difficult to develop through online learning alone.
 - **Example**: Organize in-person workshops on using e-commerce platforms, conducting data analysis with specialized software, or developing a digital marketing campaign. These workshops can serve as "capstone" experiences where participants apply what they've learned online.
- 3. Utilize Synchronous and Asynchronous Learning Formats: Combine synchronous (real-time) activities, such as live webinars or group discussions, with asynchronous (self-paced) learning opportunities, like recorded videos, reading materials, and assignments. This approach ensures participants can choose how and when to engage with the content.
 - **Example**: Host live Q&A sessions or panel discussions with industry experts to supplement pre-recorded lectures. Record these events and make them available for later viewing, allowing participants who could not attend live to benefit from the content.
- 4. **Incorporate Digital Tools to Facilitate Engagement and Interaction**: Use digital tools to enhance the blended learning experience, including online forums, collaborative platforms, and interactive software for virtual simulations. These tools can help bridge the gap between online and in-person learning, enabling participants to engage actively throughout the program.
 - **Example**: Set up an online learning management system (LMS) where participants can access course materials, submit assignments, interact with peers through discussion boards, and receive feedback from instructors. Use tools like breakout rooms during webinars for small-group discussions.
- 5. Adapt Content Delivery Based on Participants' Needs and Preferences: Allow participants to choose how they want to complete certain modules, based on their individual learning preferences





or schedules. Offer options for online-only participation, blended formats, or predominantly inperson approaches.

• **Example**: Offer participants the choice to complete certain training modules entirely online or attend in-person workshops, depending on their preferences and availability. This can be particularly useful for participants in rural or remote areas who may not have regular access to in-person training sessions.

Benefits:

- Enhanced Flexibility and Accessibility: Blended learning provides multiple ways for participants to access training, making it more inclusive for those with different learning styles, schedules, or geographic limitations.
- Improved Learning Outcomes: Combining the strengths of online and in-person learning creates a more engaging and comprehensive learning experience. Online content allows for self-paced learning, while in-person sessions provide opportunities for hands-on practice and peer interaction.
- **Increased Participant Retention**: Providing flexible learning options helps accommodate participants' needs, reducing dropout rates and ensuring that more participants complete the program successfully.

Blended learning models offer a balanced approach to digital skills training, combining the flexibility of online learning with the engagement of face-to-face activities. By designing programs that incorporate both synchronous and asynchronous elements, VET providers can create accessible, effective training experiences that cater to a wide range of participants. This approach ensures that digital skills training remains relevant and adaptable to the needs of MSMEs and their employees.

2.3 Integrating Real-World Case Studies and Practical Applications

Incorporate real-world case studies, practical exercises, and hands-on projects into digital skills training programs. This approach ensures that participants not only learn theoretical concepts but also gain practical experience applying digital tools and techniques in real business scenarios.

The piloting phase showed that participants were more engaged and better able to retain skills when training included practical applications and real-world examples. Many participants found modules with hands-on exercises, such as simulations or business case studies, particularly valuable because they could see how digital skills directly applied to their work. Real-world applications help bridge the gap between learning and doing, making training more relevant and effective for MSMEs

- 1. **Develop Case Studies Based on Real Business Challenges**: Use actual business scenarios as case studies for training modules. Case studies should reflect common challenges faced by MSMEs, such as digital marketing strategies, cybersecurity threats, or process automation.
 - **Example**: Create a case study based on a small retail business transitioning to e-commerce, detailing the steps taken to build an online store, manage digital advertising, and implement cybersecurity measures. Participants can analyze the case study and propose digital solutions to improve the business.





- 2. Incorporate Practical Projects and Capstone Assignments: Design practical projects that require participants to apply the skills they have learned in a real-world context. These projects should involve tasks such as creating a digital marketing plan, setting up an online store, or using data analysis tools to solve business problems.
 - Example: Assign participants a capstone project where they must develop a comprehensive digital strategy for a hypothetical MSME, covering social media, online sales, and customer relationship management. Participants could present their strategies to a panel for feedback.
- 3. Use Simulations and Role-Playing Activities: Include simulations or role-playing exercises where participants can practice responding to digital challenges, such as managing a cybersecurity incident or optimizing a digital advertising campaign. These exercises help develop problem-solving skills and provide a safe space for participants to experiment.
 - **Example**: Conduct a cybersecurity simulation where participants must respond to a data breach scenario, following steps to contain the breach, communicate with stakeholders, and improve security measures.
- 4. **Partner with Local Businesses for Live Projects**: Collaborate with local businesses to create projects based on their current digital needs. Participants can work on these projects as part of the training, providing businesses with valuable insights while giving learners hands-on experience with real business challenges.
 - **Example**: Partner with a local café to help them build a social media presence and set up a digital loyalty program. Participants can work on different aspects of the project, such as content creation, campaign planning, and performance analysis.
- 5. **Include Regular Feedback and Reflection Sessions**: After completing case studies, practical projects, or simulations, organize feedback sessions where participants can reflect on their experiences and discuss what they learned. This helps consolidate their learning and provides opportunities for instructors to address any gaps.
 - **Example**: Following a practical exercise on digital marketing, hold a debriefing session where participants present their campaign results, discuss what worked well, and identify areas for improvement.

- Enhanced Skill Retention and Application: Practical exercises help participants retain what they have learned by applying it directly to real-world scenarios. This makes the training more impactful and prepares participants to use digital tools effectively in their businesses.
- Improved Problem-Solving Abilities: Working on real business challenges develops critical thinking and problem-solving skills, as participants must analyze situations and make decisions based on their training.
- **Greater Relevance and Engagement**: Training that includes real-world applications is more relevant to participants' work, making it easier for them to see the value in what they are learning. This increases engagement and motivation.

Integrating real-world case studies and practical applications into digital skills training programs makes learning more relevant and effective. By providing participants with opportunities to apply what they have learned to real business challenges, VET programs can better prepare MSMEs to adopt digital tools and





14

improve their business operations. This approach helps bridge the gap between theoretical knowledge and practical skills, ensuring that training has a lasting impact on participants' professional development.

2.4 Tailoring Content to Local Contexts

Customize digital skills training content to reflect the specific needs, market conditions, and cultural characteristics of local contexts. By incorporating region-specific examples, regulations, and industry trends, training programs can become more relevant and applicable to participants' unique business environments.

The piloting phase demonstrated that participants responded more positively to training content when it was aligned with local business practices and market realities. Training programs that take into account regional differences in industry structure, regulatory requirements, and cultural norms are more likely to resonate with participants and provide them with skills that are immediately useful. Customizing content helps ensure that digital skills training is applicable across diverse geographic regions, making it more inclusive and impactful

- 1. Incorporate Local Market Trends and Industry Examples: Use examples, case studies, and exercises that are based on local industries and market conditions. This can include highlighting successful local businesses that have adopted digital tools or discussing industry-specific challenges.
 - **Example**: In a region where tourism is a significant industry, training could include case studies on how local hotels and restaurants use digital marketing and online booking platforms to attract customers. This makes the training more relevant to participants working in the tourism sector.
- 2. Adapt Content to Reflect Local Regulations and Business Practices: Ensure that training materials cover the local legal and regulatory landscape, particularly for topics like data protection, e-commerce, and digital advertising. Participants should be aware of the regulations that affect digital business activities in their region.
 - **Example**: In European Union countries, include training on GDPR compliance as part of modules on data protection and cybersecurity. For participants in other regions, address relevant local data privacy laws.
- 3. **Provide Multilingual Training Materials**: Offer training content in the local language(s) to ensure accessibility for participants who may not be fluent in the primary language used in the course. This makes the training more inclusive and helps participants better understand the concepts being taught.
 - **Example**: Translate course materials, quizzes, and case studies into the local language(s) spoken by participants. Additionally, consider including subtitles for video content and providing written transcripts.
- 4. **Include Region-Specific Digital Tools and Platforms**: Tailor the training to include digital tools and platforms that are popular or commonly used in the local market. This ensures that participants gain practical skills with technologies they are likely to encounter in their business operations.





- **Example**: In some regions, specific e-commerce platforms or payment gateways may be more widely used than others. Training should cover these tools to provide participants with skills that are directly applicable to their local market.
- 5. **Engage Local Trainers and Experts**: Involve local trainers, industry professionals, and experts in delivering the training. These individuals can provide insights into the local business environment, share relevant experiences, and address region-specific questions or challenges.
 - **Example**: Invite a local business owner who successfully transitioned their company to digital operations to share their experience during a training session. This can provide participants with a real-life perspective on overcoming local market challenges.

- Increased Relevance and Engagement: Training that reflects local contexts is more meaningful to participants, as it directly addresses the challenges and opportunities they face in their businesses. This increases engagement and motivation to apply the skills learned.
- **Better Compliance with Local Regulations**: Including local legal and regulatory considerations in the training helps ensure that participants are aware of the rules that affect their business operations, reducing the risk of non-compliance.
- Enhanced Inclusivity and Accessibility: Offering training in local languages and involving local experts makes digital skills development more accessible to a broader range of participants, including those in underserved or rural areas.

Tailoring digital skills training content to local contexts ensures that the training is relevant, accessible, and applicable to the diverse needs of participants across different regions. By incorporating local market trends, regulations, and language preferences, VET programs can deliver more impactful and practical training experiences. This approach helps bridge the gap between global digital trends and local business realities, empowering MSMEs to successfully navigate their unique market environments.

2.5 Continuous Learning Pathways and Certification

Develop continuous learning pathways that allow participants to progress from foundational to advanced digital skills training, with the option to earn recognized certifications at each stage. These learning pathways should be structured to encourage lifelong learning, providing opportunities for participants to build on their skills over time and stay current with evolving digital trends.

The piloting phase indicated that participants valued training programs that offered clear progression and formal recognition of their skills. Many participants expressed interest in continuing to develop their digital competencies beyond the initial training, particularly in more specialized or advanced areas. Establishing continuous learning pathways ensures that participants can keep improving their skills in line with the changing digital landscape, while certifications enhance their employability and credibility

- 1. **Create a Tiered Learning Structure**: Design a tiered training program that starts with foundational skills and progresses to more advanced topics, allowing participants to move from basic digital literacy to specialized skills such as data analytics, AI, or cybersecurity.
 - **Example**: Structure the training program in three levels:





- Level 1 (Basic): Digital literacy and essential digital tools (e.g., using productivity software, understanding basic cybersecurity).
- Level 2 (Intermediate): Digital marketing, e-commerce, and online collaboration tools.
- Level 3 (Advanced): Data analytics, AI applications in business, and advanced cybersecurity techniques.
- 2. **Develop Certification Programs for Each Learning Level**: Offer certifications at the completion of each learning level, which validate participants' skills and knowledge. These certifications should be recognized by employers and industry bodies to provide value in the job market.
 - Example: After completing Level 2 training, participants could earn a "Certified Digital Marketing Specialist" designation. For Level 3, they could receive a "Certified Data Analyst" or "Advanced Cybersecurity Professional" certification.
- 3. **Incorporate Micro-Credentials for Specialized Skills**: Introduce micro-credentials for specific competencies within each training level. Micro-credentials can be earned for completing short courses or mastering particular tools, providing participants with targeted recognition for niche skills.
 - **Example**: Participants could earn micro-credentials for skills such as "SEO for Small Businesses," "Introductory Python for Data Analysis," or "Digital Payment Systems Management." These credentials can be stacked toward a larger certification.
- 4. Encourage Lifelong Learning with Ongoing Access to Updated Content: Provide participants with access to updated training materials, webinars, and additional resources even after they complete the initial training. This supports lifelong learning by allowing participants to stay informed about the latest digital trends and tools.
 - **Example**: Offer an alumni portal where participants can access new course materials, recorded webinars on emerging technologies, and updates on regulatory changes. Include a subscription model for continuous access to premium content.
- 5. **Establish Partnerships with Accreditation Bodies and Industry Associations**: Work with accreditation bodies, industry associations, and employers to ensure that the certifications provided are recognized and valued in the job market. Partnering with reputable organizations adds credibility to the certifications and enhances participants' employability.
 - **Example**: Collaborate with a recognized tech certification body, such as CompTIA, to cocertify the training program's cybersecurity modules. This will help ensure the certifications meet industry standards.

- Enhanced Employability and Career Progression: Certifications demonstrate participants' skills to potential employers, boosting their job prospects. Structured learning pathways provide clear routes for career advancement in digital fields.
- Increased Motivation for Lifelong Learning: Continuous learning pathways encourage participants to keep building their skills over time, making them more adaptable to technological changes and more valuable in the job market.





• **Up-to-Date Skill Sets**: Providing access to ongoing learning resources ensures that participants can keep their digital skills current, adapting to new tools, platforms, and industry requirements.

Implementing continuous learning pathways and certification programs helps ensure that digital skills training remains relevant and valuable to participants over time. By providing clear learning progressions, recognized certifications, and opportunities for lifelong learning, VET programs can better equip participants for ongoing success in a digital economy. This approach supports the long-term growth and adaptability of MSMEs, while enhancing the employability of the workforce.



